
March 21, 2012 
 

Request for Qualifications (RFQ) 
for the Regional Agency Headquarters Facility 

at 390 Main Street, San Francisco: 
Leasing Agent and Property Management Services,  

Dated March 9, 2012 
 

Questions & Answers: 
From Proposers’ Conference & Tour at 390 Main Street, San Francisco, CA on March 16, 2012  

and Received as Clarifications and Exceptions on March 20, 2012 
 
 
Q1 Does BAHA have a standard lease agreement? 

 
A1 No. 

 
Q2 Are each of the floors at 390 Main St, San Francisco, CA the same size? 

 
A2 Yes, all of the floors are the same size.  Each floor is approximately 62,500 sq ft in size.  

 
Q3 Section VI, D.6 of the RFQ states that SOQ’s must “Provide a list of properties located 

within the nine-county Bay Area currently under active management by the Proposer’s 
firm and include at a minimum the following information:  property name, complete 
address, property owner information, building total SF, total SF under management, 
Property Manager’s Name, Total Years Property under Proposer’s management, and totals 
for square footage information provided.”  Should Proposers submit the name of the 
Property Management agency or the name of the employee who is the Property Manager? 
 

A3 Proposers should list the name of the employee who is acting as the Property Manager. 
 

Q4 Is there a specific timeline set for the renovation of 390 Main Street, San Francisco, CA? 
 

A4 The exact timeline for each phase has not been established yet, but the date for completion 
of the Agency space has been established as Fall 2013, to be refined once Construction 
Manager at Risk (CMAR) is on board.  
 

Q5 Will the selected firm be required to provide property management services for the 
governmental tenants? 
 

A5 That has not been determined yet.  
 

Q6 Will the owners representative be required to assist BAHA in the selection of the CMAR? 
 

A6 No. 
 

Q7 Has BAHA considered waiting to award the CMAR contract until the Property 
Management firm is selected? 
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A7 No. 
 

Q8 Who will be responsible for the build of the tenant space?  Will it be the CMAR of the 
Property Management firm? 
 

A8 The CMAR will bring the space to somewhere between cold and warm shell.  After that it 
is undetermined if the remaining build of tenant space will be done by the CMAR or 
tenant’s subcontractor. 
 

Q9 How is BAHA prioritizing non-agency space? 
 

A9 The selected Property Management firm will assist BAHA in developing the strategy for 
prioritization of non-agency space. 
 

Q10 Does BAHA want to keep agency space on the top floors of the building? 
 

A10 BAHA feels strongly that the agency space should be on the top floors of the building, but 
the decision for location of agency space hasn’t been finalized yet. 
 

Q11 Does BAHA expect the owners representative to present ideas on tenant 
strategy/approach? 
 

A11 Yes. 
 

Q12 Does BAHA control the parking lot located adjacent to the building?   
 

A12 No, BAHA does not control the parking lot, it is a separate parcel.  The building currently 
has dedicated parking on the first floor.  
 

Q13 Will the Property Management firm be responsible for managing parking? 
 

A13 This hasn’t been determined yet, BAHA will work with the Property Management firm to 
determine who will be responsible for management of parking.   
 

Q14 Are there any building engineers currently located in 390 Main Street, San Francisco CA?  
 

A14 Yes, the current property management firm is Amerimar Main Street, Management Co., 
LLC, and they have a full-time building engineer on-site and a half-time HVAC 
technician.  The current property management firm also provides and staffs the building 
with security, janitorial staff and other contract services.  
 

Q15 Who is the design team working with BAHA on the project? 
 

A15 Perkins + Will and their subconsultant, Tom Eliot Fisch, are the design firms working with 
BAHA on the project. 
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Q16 What security requirements does the building have?  

 
A16 Security requirements are undetermined at this time.   

 
Q17 The building is vacant.  Does BAHA still want the selected Property Manager to have an 

on-site office? 
 

A17 The building is not vacant, there is one tenant, and there is currently a full-time building 
manager on-site.  During construction the property manager will need to have an office 
near the building to handle leasing responsibilities.  Afterwards, the location of the office 
will need to be determined.  
 

Q18 Will the lobby and elevators be renovated?  
 

A18 Yes, the lobby and elevators are being evaluated. The extent of the renovation of these 
areas has not yet been determined.  
 

Q19 Will the building in operation 24/7?  
 

A19 Future building hours are undetermined at this time, they will depend on the requirements  
of the building tenants.  However, there is a security guard on site 24/7 for the current 
tenant.  
 

Q20 Has BAHA consulted with the General Services Administration (GSA) on security 
requirements for the building?  
 

A20 Yes. 
 

Q21 Section VI, D.7 states that SOQ’s must: “Describe your firm’s experience in the design, 
development, and marketing to attract other tenants into properties with a similar mission 
and goal as BAHA’s vision for 390 Main Street.  What is that mission and goal? 
 

A21 Please refer to Page 1, Section I, Background and Existing Condition, of the RFQ, which 
describes the BAHA strategy and purpose.  
 

Q22 Confidentiality.  Are Proposers limited to certain portions of our response to RFQ being 
redacted or may we have the whole document be treated as confidential? 
 

A22 Please refer to Page 11, Section VIII, General Conditions, Subarticle F, Public Records of 
the RFQ.  
 

Q23 How will BAHA evaluate if this is a successful project/campaign?  Are there metrics by 
which BAHA will use to measure?  For example, financial (NOI, Budget, Capital, Lease 
proforma). 
 

A23 BAHA has not yet determined how the project/campaign will be evaluated.   
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Q24 Are there facility management requirements, such as conference room set up and move 

add/changes of interior office furniture and meeting set up? 
 

A24 No.  Conference room set up, move/add/changes to interior office furniture, and meeting 
set up will be handled by Agency staff.  
  

Q25 Is there an expectation to have the BAHA Professional Services Agreement filled out 
completely?  If so, it conflicts with the requirement to address compensation (Article 3 of 
Agreement) vs. the RFQ which states that BAHA will negotiate the hourly rate and 
payment terms following their ranking of the top firm. 
 

A25 No.  Proposers are not expected to complete and return the BAHA Professional Services 
Agreement with their SOQ.  The sample BAHA Consultant Agreement was posted on the 
MTC website, and RFQ, Appendix C, Synopsis of Provisions in BAHA’s Standard 
Consultant Agreement, are included for Proposer reference only.    
 

Q26 The Professional Services Agreement does not address specific requirements of a typical 
property management agreement, i.e., establishing the bank account, receiving rent on 
behalf of Landlord, capital outlay, etc.  Can the selected firm utilize their Property 
Management Agreement or significant parts thereof, as and Exhibit in the BAHA 
Agreement? 
 

A26 See Addendum #1, Item 1.  BAHA is requesting that Proposers submit for review a copy 
of their standard Leasing Agent and/or Property Management agreements.  This 
information is for BAHA reference only, it will not be evaluated, nor does it commit 
BAHA to acceptance of any proposed terms and conditions.    
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